
Merton Council 

Cabinet Agenda 
 
Membership 

Councillors:  

Stephen Alambritis (Chair) 
Mark Allison 
Nick Draper 
Caroline Cooper-Marbiah 
Andrew Judge 
Edith Macauley MBE 
Maxi Martin 
Judy Saunders 
Martin Whelton 
 
Date: Monday 29 June 2015  

Time:   7.15 pm 

Venue:   Committee rooms C, D & E - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, 
Morden SM4 5DX 

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.  
For more information about the agenda please contact  
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3361. 
 
All Press contacts: press@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3181 



Cabinet Agenda 

29 June 2015  

1  Apologies for absence   

2  Declarations of pecuniary interest   

3  Minutes of the previous meeting  1 - 4 

4  Shared Internal Audit Service and Update on HR Shared 
Service  

5 - 30 

5  Financial Monitoring 2015-16 (May 2015)  To Follow 

6  Exclusion of the public  

To RESOLVE that the public are excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the 
following report(s) on the grounds that it is 
(they are) exempt from disclosure for the 
reasons stated in the report(s). 

 

7  School Catering Contract  Exempt Agenda 

 

Note on declarations of interest 

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at 
the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during 
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  
members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give 
rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of 
the item.  For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. 



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee. 

 

1 

CABINET 
8 JUNE 2015 

(19.15 - 19.40) 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 

Councillor Stephen Alambritis (in the Chair), 
Councillor Mark Allison, Councillor Nick Draper, 
Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah, Councillor Andrew Judge, 
Councillor Edith Macauley, Councillor Maxi Martin, 
Councillor Judy Saunders and Councillor Martin Whelton 
 
Paul Ballatt (Assistant Director of Commissioning, Strategy and 
Performance), Ged Curran (Chief Executive), Paul Dale 
(Assistant Director of Resources), Anthony Hopkins (Head of 
Library and Heritage Services), Chris Lee (Director of 
Environment and Regeneration), Fiona Thomsen (Head of 
Shared Legal Services), Simon Williams (Director of Community 
and Housing) and Chris Pedlow (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer). 
 
Councillors Peter Southgate and Linda Taylor 
  
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) 
 

No apologies were received. 
 
 
2  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2) 

 
No pecuniary declarations were made. 
 
 
3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3) 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2015 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
4  COLLIERS WOOD LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT (Agenda Item 4) 

 
The Cabinet Member for Community and Culture presented the report that sought 
Cabinet’s approval for the arrangements for the development of a new library in 
Colliers Wood. It was noted that planning permission had already been received for 
the proposed new library site in Cavendish House. The Cabinet Member emphasised 
that the new library will be much improved on its predecessor and would also include 
a community space. It was confirmed that during the build the library will be hosted in 
the Guardian Centre for the blind. 
 
 
RESOLVED 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 

 
That Cabinet  
 
1.  agrees that the existing lease of Donald Hope Library be surrendered and the 

Council take a new lease to develop the Cavendish House site to provide 
improved and efficient library facilities in the Colliers Wood area subject to final 
terms being agreed by the Director of Environment and Regeneration under his 
delegated authority. 

 
2.  replaces the existing capital scheme of £550,000 for Colliers Wood Library 

provision with a new scheme of £200,000. 
 
3.  agrees, subject to the authority of the Director of Environment and 

Regeneration, that a lease of temporary library facilities is taken on the main 
terms identified within the body of this report whilst the library site is developed. 

 
 
5  REFERENCE TO CABINET FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMISSION ON OUTCOME OF CALL-IN MEETING - ADULT 
EDUCATION IN MERTON: EVIDENCE AND OPTIONS FOR ACHIEVING A 
VALUE FOR MONEY SERVICE (Agenda Item 5) 

 
Cabinet considered the reference from the Overview and Scrutiny Commission. The 
Cabinet Member for Education in response to the recommendations, confirmed that 
he had met with the school since the scrutiny meeting and would be keeping them 
updated on that matter. On the second recommendations he also confirmed that 
views of staff working for the adult education service had been taken into account 
and they were following the HR procedures of the council. 
 
Cabinet thanked the Commission for their comments and their constructive 
discussion held at their meeting on 10 March 2015. 
   
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
1.  confirms that Joseph Hood Primary School would be kept fully informed of the 

decision process regarding any plans for the future use of the Whatley Avenue 
site 

 
2. confirms that views of staff working for the adult education service had been 

taken into account of the, as set out in the consultation results and expressed at 
the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission on 10 March 2015, and 
works with staff in a positive and constructive manner, in accordance with the 
HR procedures of the council. 

Page 2



3 

6  SECONDARY SCHOOL EXPANSION (Agenda Item 6) 
 

The Cabinet Member for Education presented the report which reminded Members 
that the Council has provided an additional 2000 primary school spaces with a 
commitment of a further 2000 places, through the successful primary school 
expansion programme. 
 
However by 2018 the Borough will require an extra 300 year 7 places in our 
secondary schools. It was noted that part of those additional places should be 
covered by the planned new secondary in Wimbledon which has been given 
permission by the Government.  
 
However there is also a need to expand the current schools across the borough and 
as a result, the recommendation was that the Council enter into a pre-construction 
agreement with Willmott Dixon for the expansion of Harris Morden, Harris Merton and 
St. Mark’s Academy under the SCAPE framework. It was confirmed that the proposal 
does not commit the council to the expansion of those schools, just to start the 
investigations of how such expansion could occur.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
1. notes the significant increase in demand for secondary school places flowing 

from primary schools, with an immediate need for at least an addition 300 year 
7 places (10 forms of entry) required by September 2018. 

 
2.  notes the limited options available for expansion of existing schools, and the 

need for a new secondary school in the Wimbledon area to complement 
deliverable expansions to the east of the borough. Following Secretary of State 
approval this would be delivered through the Harris Wimbledon School and so 
responsibility for identifying a site rests with the Department for Education under 
the Free School programme, but the council can facilitate this process. 

 
3. agrees that the council enters into a pre-construction agreement with Willmott 

Dixon for the expansion of Harris Morden, Harris Merton and St. Mark’s 
Academy under the SCAPE framework with clearly costed break-clauses at key 
stages to allow for the fact that:  

 
(a) It is not clear all projects will progress to construction so any scheme may 

stop after design Stage C 
 
(b) The timescales for implementing is not clear and the council may choose, 

after stage E, to instead follow a competitive tender route for construction 
if it is better value for money, especially if schemes are not implemented to 
similar timescales 

Page 3



4 

7  MERTON HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY (Agenda Item 7) 
 

The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health presented the report which 
included a copy of the refreshed Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-18. The 
strategy had been developed with our partners and it had already been endorsed by 
the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
The key focus of the strategy was on reducing health inequalities, also to halt the rise 
in the gap in life expectancy across the Borough. It was noted that the five key 
priorities were: 

• Best start in life – early years development and strong educational 
achievement. 

• Good health – focus on prevention, early detection of long-term conditions and 
access to good quality health and social care 

• Life skills, lifelong learning and good work 

• Community participation and feeling safe 

• A good natural and built environment 
 
The Cabinet in considering the report, collectively expressed their support for the 
strategy, especially how the five key priorities intertwined through their portfolios. 
They emphasised that the health and wellbeing of our residents needs to be at the 
forefront of the work of the Council, through all its various services. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
That Cabinet approves the refreshed of the Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2015-18 
 
 
8  2014-15 FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT (Agenda Item 8) 

 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance presented the report, which 
provided the provisional out-turn position for 2014/15 financial year. It was highlighted 
that for the first time in recent years the Council had an overspend at the end of a 
financial year, and as such it has had a knock on impact on the use and levels of the 
council reserves. It was noted that the report broke down the Council expenditure by 
service departments and provided details of the capital outturn.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
1. notes the draft provisional revenue outturn for 2014/15 
 
2.  approves the proposed net slippage into 2015/16 of £7,203k 
 
 

Page 4



Committee: Cabinet 

Date: 29
th

 June 2015 

Wards:  

Subject:  Shared Internal Audit Service and Update on HR Shared Service 

Lead officer: Caroline Holland – Director of Corporate Services 

Lead member: Councillor Mark Allison 

Contact officer: Margaret Culleton – Head of Internal Audit  email. 
margaret.culleton@merton.gov.uk 

 

Recommendations:  

A Cabinet note the decision to serve notice of our intention to withdraw from the 
Sutton – Merton shared HR service and the plans of the council to explore 
alternative options over the coming months. 

 
B Cabinet to agree to Merton joining the shared Richmond and Kingston Council 

Internal Audit Service 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report provides an update on the HR Shared Service with the London Borough 
of Sutton in light of other joint arrangements amongst South London boroughs. 

1.2 This report outlines the proposal for Merton to join the Richmond and Kingston 
Shared Internal Audit Service with effect from 1st October 2015, with Richmond as 
the lead authority.  

2. DETAILS  

2.1 Human Resources update 
 
1.1 In May the London Borough of Merton served notice of our intention to leave the 

Sutton – Merton shared HR service. The notice period agreed within the 
collaboration agreement is one year and as such the current arrangement will 
terminate on the 31st May 2016. 
 

1.2 This decision was taken in light of the following developments: 

• In January Wandsworth Borough Council (WBC) and the London Borough of 
Richmond upon Thames (LBRuT) announced their intention to move to a 
shared staffing agreement between the two boroughs.  

� As such, LBRuT served notice to the Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) that 
they intended to leave the Richmond – Kingston shared HR service. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



� Subsequently, RBK and the London Borough of Sutton (LBS) have agreed to 
investigate the potential for a shared HR arrangement between them. 

� LBM has been in a shared HR service with LBS for over five years and in 
light of the above decisions and the multiple options these present it seemed 
like the right opportunity to take a step back and consider the most optimal 
solution for HR services in Merton. 

� Merton has multiple options for the best solution for the future of our HR 
services – as part of an LBS –RBK shared service, as part of a WBC-LBRuT 
shared service or in an alternative model.  

1.3 Taking account of the above LBM served notice in order to keep our options open 
and to give us an opportunity to consider the best solution for the provision of HR 
services for the council for the coming years. 

1.4 The work looking at options will continue over the coming months with a 
recommendation brought back to Cabinet towards the end of the year.  

 

2.2 Internal Audit Shared Service 

2.2.1 In 2011 Richmond and Kingston Internal Audit and Investigation service became a 
shared service. In April 2015, the investigation function for 5 councils, Richmond, 
Kingston, Sutton, Merton and Wandsworth were joined in a partnership, led by 
Wandsworth council.  

2.2.2 The Richmond, Kingston Shared audit service is now seeking to expand their audit 
service to include neighboring authorities.  Discussions have started on the feasibility 
of Merton joining and an outline project brief developed. This has received 
endorsement in principle at senior management level in each authority and 
endorsement is now sought from Members to progress this work. 

2.2.3 The Internal Audit function at Merton has 6 posts. The Internal Audit function at 
Richmond and Kingston Shared service is of a comparable size with 9 posts and 2 
FTE equivalent outsourced from Mazars. Both Merton and the Richmond/Kingston 
shared service use a risk based audit model, using Galileo. There are, however, 
some differences in the scope of the two functions, with Richmond risk and some 
aspects of corporate assurance are within its Internal Audit Service. Merton has 
some aspect of corporate assurance and RBK and Merton has specifically split off 
risk. Richmond and Kingston currently outsource a larger proportion of their audit 
work to Mazars than Merton. 

Drivers for change  

2.2.4 Councils are facing enormous challenges as a result of grant reductions by central 
Government. It is crucial that each council applies its limited resources in the most 
effective way possible 

2.2.5 Internal audit teams have a vital role to play in helping Councils manage effectively 
through the challenges they face by ensuring that governance, risk management 
and control arrangements remain effective.  To do this successfully, internal audit 

Page 6



teams need to be fit for purpose and provide assurance of the necessary quality, 
depth and coverage.  Often this will mean giving assurance on complex and risky 
issues and using specialist resources when necessary.   

2.2.6 As well as Internal Audit providing an effective service now they need to ensure they 
are resilient against any potential future efficiency.  

2.2.7 A Memorandum of Co-operation signed by South London Partnership Boroughs 
supporting collaboration and endorsed by Merton. .At this time when shared 
services are being  explored for Merton, it makes sense to consider joining an 
Internal Audit  Service.  

2.2.8 The scale of a potential shared service would be manageable and objectives 
realised within a reasonable timescale and would provide scope for further 
integrated arrangements with other boroughs in the future. 

2.2.9 Richmond and Kingston are similar sized London Boroughs to Merton, 
geographically adjacent, and influenced by similar issues in their respective market 
places.  

 Benefits 

2.2.10 It is proposed that the Internal Audit Shared Service Project be progressed in order to 
realise the potential business benefits for all councils including: 

i) to deliver a programme of high quality and reliable assurance on all key 
governance, risk and control systems to each Council, operating in 
accordance with statutory requirements, professional standards such as the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and recognised best practice 
methodology  

ii)   to deliver the service through a mix of in-house staff and contract days 
procured through the Croydon framework contract (or similar). This allows 
greater flexibility to buy in specialist audit services and in a period of 
significant organisational change in both authorities, to expand or contract 
as and when required; 

iii)       to deliver high standards of customer service and be responsive and flexible 
in its approach, offering the benefits of a ‘close’ in-house team   

iv)       to offer a wide base of experience, resilience, specialisms and skills, taking 
advantage of the economy of scale available to larger audit teams   

v)       to deliver efficiencies through exploiting opportunities for joined-up working, 
adopting a common methodology and service standards, sharing 
knowledge, skills and expertise whilst continuing to provide the assurance 
required to the Section 151 officers that appropriate resources are in place 
in a time of reductions in public sector funding   

vi)       to provide a supportive and stimulating working environment for those staff 
working in the Shared Service with opportunities for career development  

Page 7



vii)       to be open to future opportunities to expand the Shared Service, thus 
enabling greater efficiencies to be achieved. 

3. Governance arrangements for Internal Audit shared service 

3.1  The project sponsors are the Directors of Finance or Corporate Services of each 
council. The co-Project Sponsors at RBK will be the Executive Head of Organisational 
Development and Strategic Business and Director of Finance. A Project Manager 
has been appointed in the Legal Shared service (led by Merton). 

3.2 The Project Board will report into both Kingston's Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) 
and Richmond's Executive Board and Merton Corporate Management Team and will 
drive forward the delivery of the project by: 

•       Providing the energy, direction and support to enable the project team to 
deliver its brief 

• Leading the engagement and communication with staff and other 
stakeholders across both boroughs 

• Managing the risks and issues that will arise through the delivery of the 
project 

• Considering and agreeing any significant changes to the project. 

3.3  A Project Team to include the Head of Audit of Richmond & Kingston and the Head 
of Audit at Merton will be formed in order to deliver the project and co-ordinate the 
activities of the Work Stream teams. These Work Streams will be identified as the 
project progresses, but are likely to include areas such as governance, HR, IT, Finance,, 
Accommodation and communication and culture 

3.4 It is proposed that the arrangement will be governed through a detailed partnership 
agreement which will set out the arrangements in place, standards and 
expectations, and performance targets.   

3.5 Thereafter, it is proposed that oversight of the shared service will be through a joint 
officer board comprising those Finance Directors of the 3 authorities, given their 
particular interest in ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit 
arrangements.  The board will monitor the performance of the Shared Service to 
ensure that it delivers the standards and expectations set out in the partnership 
agreement. 

3.6 Whilst the partners will jointly oversee the performance of the shared service, the 
responsibility for the adequacy of the whole system of internal audit will remain with 
the Councils themselves. 

Merton’s Governance arrangements 

3.7 Merton will be retaining a Head of Internal Audit, as part of the shared service, who 
will continue to report to General Purpose’s committee.  

3.8 General Purposes Committee will retain responsibility for approving audit plans and 
monitoring delivery and will continue to: 

Page 8



•   be responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of the internal audit function 
at Council level, and holding the Head of Internal Audit to account for 
delivery 

•   be responsible for the effectiveness of their respective governance, risk 
management and control arrangements, holding managers to account for 
delivery 

•   Receive regular progress updates on internal audit work, consider key 
themes and issues, and take them forward as necessary. 

4.       ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS FOR AUDIT SHARED SERVICE 

4.1 An independent review was undertaken in 2013/2014 recommending a shared audit 
service delivery model. Although this was not taken forward at the time and the 
review related to the establishment of a four borough shared service, the principles 
remain relevant. 

4.2 The option of not moving to a shared service would leave Merton’s Internal Audit 
Service less effective if future cost efficiencies were required. 

5. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED FOR AUDIT SHARED 
SERVICE 

5.1 Consultation is proposed to commence on the 7th July 2015 with all staff. Any 
concerns or questions arising from this will be responded to and included in the final 
business case. 

 

6. TIMETABLE FOR AUDIT SHARED SERVICE 

6.1 A project plan has been developed to include target dates for the 5 work streams; 
Governance, Finance, culture & communications; IT & accommodation and HR. 
Frequent meetings will be held to keep the project on course. 

6.2 The proposed timescales would be for the staff consultation to start is the 7th July 
2015 with a view to starting the shared service in October 2015. 

7. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS FOR AUDIT 
SHARED SERVICE 

7.1 Savings flowing from the shared service are likely to be minimal. Project 
management and implementation related costs will be shared between Kingston and 
Richmond and Merton and appropriate approval for these will be sought. 

8. Legal and statutory implications for audit shared service 

8.1 Section 151 of the Local Government act 1972 requires every local authority to 
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. 

8.2 Section 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 states that “A relevant body 
must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records 

Page 9



and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in 
relation to internal control” 

8.3 The Council has the necessary legal powers to arrange for the discharge of its 
functions by another authority. In practical terms, the Council will need to enter into 
an inter-authority agreement to cover the process upto implementation of the shared 
service arrangements and, subsequently, a further legal agreement to cover the 
ongoing arrangements once implemented. 

9. Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications for audit 
shared service 

9.1      A full EIA will be updated and completed by the formal consultation. A full EIA will 
be completed by prior to the decision to settle the structure and will be taken into 
account as part of the future decision making. 

10      CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

None 

11. Risk management and health and safety implications for audit shared service 

11.1 Project Board will be responsible for managing the key risks and issues arising from 
the delivery of the project, and a full risk register will be developed during the 
initiation phase. This is likely to reflect a number of the initial challenges and 
potential constraints that have already been identified: 

• Shaping and responding to the vision of different organisations with separate 
democratic responsibilities and arrangements 

• Different organisational cultures and priorities 

• Different employment policies and arrangements across boroughs 

• Different terms and conditions of Internal Audit staff across boroughs 

• Different scope of current Internal Audit functions — e.g. corporate 
assurance and risk management 

• Size of the functions considered, related budget and resilience 

• Need to satisfy any procurement legislative requirements 

 

12 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED WITH 
THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

• Business Case for audit shared service 

 

 

Page 10



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 1 of 19 

 

FULL BUSINESS CASE – EXTENSION OF THE SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE  
MAY 2015 

 
Executive Summary 

(i) Summary 

The Council intends to extend the current shared internal audit service between Richmond and 
Kingston to include LB Merton. 
 

(ii) Overview of the Services to be commissioned 

The extension to the current shared service arrangement will cover the internal audit function only 
following the establishment of the South West London Fraud Partnership (SWLFP) led by Wandsworth 
Council. The shared internal audit service will deliver the following to the 3 Councils:  
 

• Internal audit – delivery of the agreed annual audit plans in each authority 

• Internal audit – management support & advice as required to senior managers 
 
The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and 
effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with 
the proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the Chief Financial Officer / S151 officer’s 
responsibility to ensure that an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained, and that 
an appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no 
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer 
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base 
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely. 
 
It is essential given the level of organizational change that the internal audit service is fit for purpose 
and proportionate to any new organizational structures. In periods of significant change there are risks 
in reducing the level of audit resource and there may be a need for increased audit in some key areas. 
However, with Council’s reducing in size and increasing commissioning, the level of internal audit 
required may well reduce over time. In light of this, the shared service must, above all else, be a 
flexible resource to expand and contract depending on organizational requirements. 
 
Once extended, the shared internal audit service will consider the potential for further expansion. At 
present, this includes plans to extend the service to include Wandsworth Council in 2016/17. 
 

(iii) Strategic Fit 

Kingston , Richmond and Merton are members of the South London Partnership, the group of South 
London Boroughs which have agreed to work together where appropriate in delivering new service 
delivery vehicles. 
Moreover, the shared service will offer the opportunity to combine the closeness and understanding of 
the business offered by a mixed service (mix of in-house and contractor resource), with the opportunity 
for resilience, efficiency and development enabled through a larger core of in-house staff. 

 (Iv) Considerations 

Page 11



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 2 of 19 

 

 
Consultation and engagement 
 
Expansion proposals have been discussed and agreed by the Directors of Finance at each of the 
authorities and  formal endorsement sought from Audit Committees at LBR and RBK and General 
Purposes Committee at LBM. The Heads of Internal Audit and Head of the South London Legal 
Partnership (SLLP) who line manages the internal audit function at LBM,  have had a number of 
meetings to discuss and progress proposals. Meetings have also been held with staff.  
 
Staff will be involved in the project, some by being involved in project work streams looking at future 
arrangements for ICT, accommodation etc. A Staff workshop event is planned and there will be regular 
update briefings to keep staff up to date with progress. 
 
Formal staff consultation procedures will be followed as part of the development of the service and 
TUPE transfer proposals.  
 
Finance and efficiency  
 
A financial evaluation of the business case for expanding the current shared Internal Audit service has 
been carried out This is based on the shared service commencing on 1st October 2015. 
 
The key driver for the shared service is resilience and the realization of future savings and economies 
of scale as other parties join the shared service. Whilst there will be no immediate significant savings 
anticipated as a result of this expansion of the current shared service arrangement ,work will be 
undertaken to streamline processes and undertaking audits across three Authorities which should 
produce efficiencies and make savings in terms of the number of audit days. 
Development costs are expected to be minimal particular as an ICT solution already in place for the 
South London Legal Partnership (SLLP) and SWLFP which can be rolled out to the internal audit 
shared service. No redundancies are anticipated as a result of this project. 
 
In the longer term, the shared service will seek to improve productivity and methods of working to 
achieve further efficiency savings. Also, the service will remain flexible so that it can expand or contract 
to meet organisational and/or statutory needs. 
 
Policy implications 
 
The commissioning role rests with the Directors of Finance who have the statutory S151 responsibility 
to meet the requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The role of the Audit Committees (LBR and RBK) and General Purposes Committee (LBM) will remain 
in line with their current Terms of Reference 
 
Risks 
 
Risks are detailed at 2.4.1.  
 
One of the key risks, particularly in the interim period, is that the Heads of Internal Audit will have a 
reduced capacity to undertake work for the shared service and LBM respectively in the period up to 
October 2015.   

 
The key target for both the current shared service and LBM’s internal audit service to deliver 100% of 
the 2015/16 Audit Plan remains in place.  Following transfer of the investigations service to the 
SWLFP, the risk of a major fraud impacting on the delivery of these Plans has now been largely 
negated, however input from the respective Heads of Internal Audit may still be required . 
 
 
Equality impact/considerations 
 

Page 12



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 3 of 19 

 

An Internal Audit and Investigations Services Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) has been 
completed and is attached at Appendix 2. A Screening for Relevance has also been completed and 
this is included in the EINA (Annex 1 and 2). These assessments conclude that there is no evidence to 
suggest that changing to a shared and jointly managed service will bring about any negative or positive 
effects on any external groups with protected characteristics. 
 
The proposals may have an impact on staff and a further EINA will be done as part of the formal staff 
consultation process. 

Part 1: Business Plan from Service / Description of Proposed Delivery Vehicle 

1.1 Description of the Business Need 

Internal audit is a statutory service and has to be provided in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 which require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the Chief Financial Officer / S151 officer’s 
responsibility to ensure that an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained, and that 
an appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no 
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer 
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base 
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely. 

 

CIPFA’s Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set out how an internal audit function should 
be established and managed to meet the statutory requirements.  

 

Internal audit delivers an annual audit plan, undertaking audit work across all the Councils’ services. 
The plan is a mix of risk based, compliance and systems based audit and includes ICT audits, key 
contracts and schools and other establishments. 

 

Internal Audit has to  

• develop so that it can continue to meet the needs of the changing organisations that it serves, 

• improve its efficiency and effectiveness in delivering the service.  

• continue to provide  independent assurance over risks and management controls which 
increases the likelihood of the Councils achieving their key objectives. 

 

1.2 Current Service Delivery Arrangements 

Richmond/Kingston 
The current shared internal audit service comprises 9 FTE  posts.  In addition, it supplements the in-
house audit team with contract auditors from Mazars(acquired via the Croydon Framework contract) to 
the equivalent of c2 FTE. 
 
The internal audit team has a number of vacancies and these are also covered by our contract partner 
auditors (Mazars) and via Agency staff. The total staff / contract budget for 2015/16 is £568k(in house 
staff £441k and contract £127k). 
The current Richmond/Kingston service delivers 1600 audit days, split equally between LBR and RBK. 
 
 
Merton 
The current service comprises of 6 FTE, in addition Mazars provide an additional 0.30 c FTE via the 
Croydon framework.  Total staff /contractor costs for LBM for 2015/16 are £346k (£306k staff and £40k 
contract) 
 
The current Merton service delivers 993 audit days. 
 The three borough shared service will initially not involve a significant restructure of the teams but 
simply an amalgamation of the current staffing structures at Merton into the Richmond/Kingston 
structure. This means that there will be no changes to staffing costs but the opportunity will be taken to 
review the staff mix and capacity in the longer term. 
 

Page 13



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 4 of 19 

 

 
From the 1st April 2015, the fraud investigation work is now delivered  by the South West London Fraud 
Partnership (SWLFP). For Merton, Sutton, Richmond and Kingston. The Heads of Internal Audit across 
each of the five boroughs will oversee the management and delivery of this function through 
attendance at bi-monthly Steering Group meetings and through receipt and monitoring of monthly 
performance reports. 

1.3.1 The proposed service delivery vehicle 

 
In summary, the following services will be delivered to the 3 Councils: 
 

• Internal audit – delivery of the agreed annual audit plans in each authority 

• Internal audit – management support & advice as required to senior managers 
 

The full range of services proposed will include: 

• Compliance – ensure stated and approved polices are being complied with 

• Operational – ensure systems of internal control are effective, risk are well managed and 
operations achieve objectives 

• Regularity – support of external audit to ensure key financial controls work 

• Analytical – support managers? with specialist analytical skills 

• Computer – ensure IT controls are working effectively 

• Contract – monitor all aspects of the delivery of major contracts 

• Value for Money – measuring effectiveness and efficiency against the economies of any 
particular activity 

• Advice and Guidance 

• Oversee delivery of fraud investigation service by SWLFP including completion of the agreed 
Fraud plans 

• Attendance and reporting to Audit Committees (RBK and LBR)  and General Purposes 
Committee (LBM) 

• Co-coordinating and preparing  the AGS (merton) 
 
 
At a time when both organisations are undergoing significant organisational and service changes, the 
level of risk exposure is increased and therefore it is critical that an adequate level of internal audit 
work is maintained to ensure new working systems and processes are implemented well across the 
organisations. Once the changes have become embedded, then the level of internal audit required may 
well reduce. In light of this, the shared service must, above all else, be a flexible resource to adapt and 
be fit for purpose in the new organisational structures. 
 
Both the current shared service and LBM have in-house teams, and rely on an external contract 
partner, Mazars, to help deliver the audit service. This will continue although there are other options 
available through the employment of agency staff or procurement of audit days from other external 
providers. These will be considered more fully. The Internal Audit shared service provides an 
opportunity to make best use of existing resources and expertise to develop a more flexible and 
resilient service, which is fit for purpose. This will include developing specialisms within the in-house 
team to reduce reliance on external contractor resource which is more expensive. This should deliver 
savings in the longer term. 

 

1.3.2 Main aims and strategic vision 

The overall aim of the Shared Internal Audit Service is to combine the closeness and understanding of the 

business offered by a mixed service (mix of in-house and contractor resource), with the opportunity for resilience, 

efficiency and development enabled through a larger core of in-house staff. The aims of the shared service are to: 

• Expand the current shared service and develop a more commercial approach to the delivery of 
services. 

Page 14



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 5 of 19 

 

• Deliver a programme of assurance on all key governance, risk and control systems to each 
Council, operating in accordance with legislative requirements and recognised best practice 
methodology; 

• To deliver the service through a mix of in-house staff and contract days procured through the 
Croydon framework contract (or similar). This allows greater flexibility to buy in specialist audit 
services and in a period of significant organisational change in both authorities, to expand or 
contract as and when required; 

• Deliver high standards of customer service and be responsive and flexible in its approach, 
offering the benefits of a mixed service which understands its clients. 

• Offer a wider base of experience, resilience, specialisms and skills, taking advantage of the 
economies of scale available to larger audit teams 

• Deliver efficiencies through exploiting opportunities for joined up working, adopting a common 
methodology and service standards  

 
The existing shared service is a high performing service which contributes to the overall sound 
governance and control environment in LBR and RBK. This includes consistent delivery of 100% of 
audit plan days.  

1.3.3 Proposed organisational structure 

See structure chart attached at Appendix 1 
 
There will be one combined team, providing a flexible pool of staff resource working 
across each authority.  
 
The structure includes a mix of in-house and contractor staff. Whilst the structure 
includes a core of in-house staff, it also allows for internal audit resource to be procured 
from an external contractor. The initial options appraisal reviewed a number of options 
for service delivery however the mix of in-house and contractor resource was 
recommended as the preferred option as this allowed greater flexibility and resilience, 
essential particularly in a time of significant organizational change.  
 
In the existing structures, the current shared service has 9FTE posts including the Head 
of Internal Audit. Merton have 6 FTE, including the Head of audit post 
This makes a total of 15 FTE; including the contractor costs at Richmond and Merton 
(which equate to c2.3 FTE), there is an existing combined budget of £915k 
 
  
 
 

1.3.4 Location and hosting arrangements 

The main working base for staff will be in the Civic Centre in Twickenham but there will need to be 
working space available at Kingston and Merton as well. 
 
For internal audit work, there needs to be a presence at Kingston and Merton and auditors need to be 
located on site for meetings with clients and given access to all relevant information and documents. 
Some of this may be available remotely via ICT connections.  
 
 
 
All three authorities are committed to hot-desking and home-working and staff will need to work flexibly 
at either location as required to attend meetings and respond to client needs. 
 
An ICT workstream has been established to develop an ICT solution which allows staff to have access 
to the necessary ICT systems across all three authorities. This will utilize systems and expertise 
already established through other shared service arrangements.  
 

1.3.5 Support Services Arrangements 

Page 15



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 6 of 19 

 

It is proposed that as the shared service will be hosted by LBR, so in the main support 
services will be provided by LBR, although as indicated above, there will need to be a 
continued presence at RBK and LBM and whilst working there, staff will need to utilise 
RBK and LBM support services as required.  
 

1.4 Service Delivery Vehicle 

Alternative delivery vehicles were considered in the initial Outline Business Case  
undertaken as part of the current shared service development in 2011/12 this included a 
reduced in-house service, and full or partial outsourcing. The initial options appraisal 
identified that a shared service with a mix of in-house and contract resources would be 
the optimal solution. This initial business case was subject to an officer challenge / 
review session to validate the findings. 
 
A further independent review was undertaken in 2013/2014 recommending a shared 
service delivery model. Although this was not taken forward at the time and the review 
related to the establishment of a four borough shared service, the principles remain 
relevant. 
 

Part 2: Council Perspective of the Business Plan 

2.1.1 Savings and Value for Money 

The key driver for this is the establishment of a more resilient service, better able to expand and 
contract in accordance with need. It is anticipated that savings will be identified through improving 
process, undertaking joint audits across authorities and potential future expansion of the service. 
 
Costs are based on estimates for 2015/16 and since the expansion will not result in a substantial 
restructure of the service, it is not anticipated that costs will change significantly if at all. There could be 
an impact on productivity in year 1 to allow a period of settling into new working practices, and 
additional staff development but productivity and efficiency would be expected to improve from year 2. 
There may be some time lost due to staff travelling between sites however this will be managed and 
kept to a minimum.  
 
No redundancies are anticipated. Whilst there may be some development costs for ICT, these are 
expected to be minimal. 
 
 
The shared service will charge each authority on the basis of an agreed number of audit days. Regular 
reports will be made to the Shared Service Board (SSB) governing this arrangement, so that the SSB 
can monitor costs and performance levels. Any under or over spends at the year end will be shared 
equally between the two authorities in line with the collaboration agreement.  
 

2.1.2 Service Quality 

It is absolutely essential that the quality of internal audit service is not adversely affected as a result of 
the shared service arrangement. Poor quality of audit work can lead to the provision of audit assurance 
to senior managers which is incorrect and could ultimately result in key control weaknesses having a 
detrimental effect on the achievement of objectives and / or resulting in an inefficient use of resources; 
at worst, it could result in a fraud being committed. 
 
The Internal Audit service works to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and is subject to 
annual review to monitor compliance with the expected service standards. There are also working 
protocols for internal audit work and with the external auditors. .  
 
A number of factors will work to ensure the quality of services is maintained: 
 

- structure – skills matched to audit work required 
- audit protocols  and service plans will include performance indicators for audit work  
- post audit quality questionnaires to ascertain client feedback 
- monitoring of the delivery of the Fraud plan  by the  SWLFP including achievement of 

Page 16



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 7 of 19 

 

key performance indicators. 
 

2.1.3 Service Continuity 

As mentioned previously, access to a larger pool of staff will provide greater resilience and better use 
of audit skills. The sharing of knowledge across three boroughs will provide staff with improved 
experience and improved professional development opportunities. 
 
Although the key driver is the provision of a more resilient and effective audit service, it needs to be 
recognized that the Head of the Shared Service and Head of Internal Audit (LBM) may have less 
capacity to be involved in corporate / management events/projects than in the past.  
 

2.2.1 Consultation / Customer Engagement 

The Heads of Internal Audit will be attending Directorate Management Teams (DMTs) at all the 
authorities to discuss the proposed Shared Service arrangement, enabling senior managers in the 3 
authorities to have an opportunity to comment on the proposals and to indicate what they see as 
important issues for the service to provide / address. 
 
LBR and RBK Audit Committees and General Purposes committee at Merton have been kept up to 
date with developments and have expressed views that they would not wish to see the level of service 
reduced. All are mindful that the expanded shared service arrangements should not have a detrimental 
impact on the service currently provided. 
 
Staff will be involved in the project, some by being involved in project work streams looking at future 
arrangements for ICT, accommodation etc. A Staff “away” day is due to be held in July 2015, and 
weekly update briefings will be provided to keep staff up to date with progress. 
 
Formal staff consultation procedures will be followed for the proposed new structure.  
 

2.2.2 Equalities 

An Internal Audit Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) has been completed and is attached at 
Appendix 2. A Screening for Relevance has also been completed and this is included in the EINA 
(Annex 2). These assessments conclude that there is no evidence to suggest that changing to a 
shared and jointly managed service will bring about any negative or positive effects on any external 
groups with protected characteristics. 
 
The proposals may have an impact on staff and a further EINA will be done as part of the formal staff 
consultation process. 
 
 

2.3.1 Statutory duties 

Internal audit is a statutory service and has to be provided in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 which require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the S151 officer’s responsibility to ensure that an 
appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no 
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer 
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base 
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely. 

 

Internal audit delivers an annual audit plan, undertaking audit work across all the Councils’ services. 
The plan is a mix of risk based, compliance and systems based audit and includes ICT audits, key 
contracts and schools and other establishments. 

 

Under the shared service arrangement, an annual audit plan will be agreed with each authority, via the 
respective Director of Finance (s151 officer) and Audit Committees/General Purposes Committee. 
These plans will be subject to discussion with the Directorate Management Teams as now. 

Page 17



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 8 of 19 

 

 

Fraud investigations work is not in itself a statutory function but is an essential service to “protect the 
public purse” from misuse, loss or theft. It forms part of the council’s anti-fraud strategies. From the 1st 
April 2015, this work is undertaken by the SWLFP and will be overseen by the Steering Group which 
consists of Heads of Internal Audit from each of the 5 boroughs. 
 
 

2.3.2 Peer Review 

The current shared service arrangement has been in place since 1st June 2012. As part of the 
establishment of this service, independent reviews of the audit and investigation services were 
undertaken. Other shared service arrangements will also researched and a number of learning points 
were taken into account in developing the shared service. The authorities reviewed were: 
Hertfordshire, South Devon, South West Audit Partnership, Preston/Lancaster/Fylde Borough Council 
and Cambridgeshire CC & Northamptonshire CC shared investigations service. This time around, 
discussions have been held with the Tri-Borough service (Kensington & Chelsea, Westminster and 
Hammersmith and Fulham). 
 
Lessons learnt can be summarized as follows: 
 

• The importance of sound communication with staff and other key stakeholders 

• Need to ensure ICT is fit for purpose 

• Whilst savings are not always huge, there are benefits from increased resilience created in the 
service and improved focus on performance  

 
A Peer review of compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was undertaken at Merton 
in 2013/14 and is due to be undertaken for the current shared service in 2016/17. 

2.4.1 Risk 

Page 18



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 9 of 19 

 

Description Recommended Action 
New structure must be flexible so as to be able to expand / contract 
resources & capacity to fit requirements 

Legal agreement with each authority must include provision for 
mechanism to review / agree funding requirements and / or 
charges 

New shared service not able to 
meet statutory requirement and / 
or business need due to 
uncertainty in each authority and 
the extent of changes to services 
as yet undetermined Legal structure of shared service must be such that allows it to take 

on new work with other organisations in the future whilst complying 
with procurement legislation 

Governance arrangements to clearly specify role and 
responsibilities of HIA in each authority 

The sharing of HIA resource 
across the 3 boroughs results in a 
reduced and unacceptable lower  
profile of HIA in one or more 
boroughs 

Structure and roles and responsibilities of staff to ensure adequate 
support is provided to the HIAs 

Staff engagement in change process to allay fears arising from 
uncertainties 

Loss of experienced staff during 
period of setting up new 
arrangements Ensure staff can use mentoring services if required 

Robust project management of business as usual and shared 
services (audit monitoring, timesheets) 

Business as usual suffers as focus 
diverted to creating new 
arrangements Use additional temporary resource to support delivery of  business 

as usual 

Robust budget monitoring in each authority Budgets overspend  in 2015 /16 
during expansion of the shared 
service 

Funding for any set up costs (e.g. IT, systems costs) to be agreed 
by each authority 

Robust budget monitoring, and performance management to 
ensure chargeable time is kept to minimum to maximise outputs 

Cost efficiencies arising from new 
shared service are not achieved 

Shared Service Board to receive regular budget monitoring reports 
to agree remedial action if overspends arise 

Engagement of contractor during development of new shared 
service arrangements 

New arrangements to consider use of other flexible resource 
providers (e.g. use of interims, agency staff, seasonal workers) 

Flexible service not achieved due 
to failure on part of contractor to 
provide acceptable level and 
quality of resource 

Robust performance management of contract staff 

Engagement with External Audit to agree expectations, systems, 
procedures and quality standards  

Quality of audit work declines and 
fails to be sufficiently adequate for 
external audit to place reliance on, 
resulting in increased external 
audit fees 

Regular liaison with External audit to discuss service delivery under 
new arrangements 

Engagement with clients, senior management and members as 
part of set up. 
Governance arrangements must include creation of IA Charter and 
plan for marketing of services 

Client satisfaction at one or more 
of the authorities decreases and 
the credibility / reputation of the 
shared service gives rise to 
criticism form senior management 
and / or members 

Robust client satisfaction questionnaire process required (improve 
level of returns) & reporting 
 

Occurrence of significant fraud in 
either or both authorities impacts 
on setting up and delivery of 
shared service arrangement 
 

Business continuity / contingency plan to be agreed . This should  
be minimal given fraud work is now undertaken by the SWLFP 

Support services are not available 
or are inadequate to support the 
shared service, or delay the 
implementation of the new shared 
service  arrangement 

Engagement with support services throughout implementation (HR 
& Payroll, IT, Facilities Management). Involvement in individual 
workstreams. 

 

Page 19



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 10 of 19 

 

2.4.2 Constraints / Assumptions 

At LBR, the HIA reports to the Director of Finance and Corporate Services. At RBK, the reporting lines 
are different with the IA and Investigations Capability Lead post sitting lower down the Authority, 
reporting to the Head of Corporate Governance who reports then to the Executive Head of 
Organisational Development and Strategic Business. There is a dotted reporting line to the Director of 
Finance. At LBM, the HIA has a dotted reporting to the Director of Finance and a management 
reporting line to the Head of the SLLP who reports to the Director of Finance.  
 
Different reporting structures could have an impact on the effectiveness of internal audit across the 
shared service however this will be monitored as part of governance arrangements through the Shared 
Service Board. 
 
It is intended that the Head of Internal Audit for Merton, whilst being line managed by the Head of the 
Shared service under the new arrangements, will continue to have a dotted line of reporting to the 
Director of Finance at Merton. 
 
Although the expansion of the shared service is likely to deliver any savings in the short term,  in the 
longer term, the shared service will seek to improve productivity and methods of working to achieve 
further efficiency savings. The service will remain flexible so that it can expand or contract to meet 
organisational and/or statutory needs.  
 
Options will be considered and developed to expand the service to include Wandsworth and potentially 
other clients in 2016/17. This should deliver savings through shared management costs and 
economies of scale. As this is considered to be the likely future direction, the model for service delivery 
must be capable of being adapted to allow other authorities to join the shared service. 
 

2.4.3 Interdependencies 

The shared internal audit service is inexplicably linked to other change programmes within each 
authority. Until the future shape and delivery of services across these authorities is defined, the volume 
of internal audit activity is not quantifiable. Hence it is critical that the shared service has a flexible 
structure and resource to be able to expand or contract depending on levels of audit required. 

Part 3: The Council’s Commissioning Approach 

3.1 Services to be commissioned 

The details of the service to be commissioned by LBR, RBK and LBM and managed by the shared 
service are as set out in Section 1.3.1 
The overall requirement is to have a flexible structure and resource which can expand or contract to 
meet statutory and client needs. The main deliverable is completion of the annual audit plan  at each 
authority. 

3.2 Process for acquiring the service 

As this is to be an internal service hosted by the Council, no procurement process will be required to 
commission the service. Any decisions relating to the arrangements between the three Councils will be 
delegated to the Shared Service Board (see 3.9). The LBR senior officer representatives on this Board 
(including the Section 151 Officer) will therefore take responsibility for commissioning the service. 
 

3.3 Contract / Agreement 

The shared service arrangement between the three authorities will be overseen by a Collaboration 
Agreement which will be drafted by Legal Services. This will be based on the Collaboration already in 
place to govern current arrangements. The Agreement once drafted will be signed off by the Shared 
Service Board.  

3.4 Length of Agreement 

The shared service Agreement will commence from 1st October 2015. The proposed period for the 
agreement is 3 years, with provision included within the Agreement for at least 6 months notice from 
either party should they wish to terminate the agreement. The agreement will include details of how 
any dissolution costs will be dealt with and how overspends and savings will be shared. 
 

Page 20



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 11 of 19 

 

3.5 Charging Mechanism 

The charging mechanism will be agreed by the SSB. It is proposed that the current method of charging 
remains based on the number of deliverable audit days and that invoices will be raised on a 6 monthly 
basis.  

3.6 Performance Indicators 

These will be developed and agreed with the SSB but will follow common benchmarking performance 
indicators for internal audit. Performance will also be monitored via customer satisfaction returns and 
feedback from senior managers / audit clients on a regular basis as is currently the case. 
 

3.7 Arrangements for use of Council support services (if applicable) 

As the shared service is relatively small, the impact on other support services will be minimal. As LBR 
will be the host authority, the support services will continue to be provided by LBR. However, for staff 
working across RBK and LBM, appropriate support services will also continue to be provided by those 
authorities. 

3.8 Arrangements for use of Council accommodation (if applicable) 

The exact accommodation requirements are still to be identified but it is expected that the existing 
accommodation at LBR and RBK for the Shared Service will continue to be used, with a satellite office 
available at LBM. 

3.9 Governance Arrangements 

A SSB with senior representative officers from LBR, RBK and LBM, including the three Directors of 

Finance (S151 officers) will oversee the delivery of the Shared Service, and the arrangements between 
the three authorities. 
Regular reports will continue to be made to the Audit Committees/General Purposes Committee. 
Decisions regarding the volume / level of audit and investigation work will rest with the SSB so that the 
Directors of Finance can fulfill their Local Government Act S151 responsibilities. This will also be 
subject to relevant member approval at each authority. 
 
The Head of the Shared Service will be line managed by the Director of Finance and Corporate 
Resources at LBR and will report direct to the SSB. 

3.10 Client Management Arrangements 

As the service will be internally managed within LBR there will not be the requirement for any specific 
client management function for the service. The Directorate Management Teams across the three 
authorities will effectively act as the service’s clients – therefore the Heads of Internal Audit will visit 
Directorate Management Teams in both authorities on a quarterly basis to discuss internal audit work 
and whether client needs are being met. At all times, the Heads of Internal Audit remain accountable to 
the Directors of Finance (S151 officers) and the respective Audit Committees/GP Committee. 

3.11 Summary of Implementation Plan 

June 2015 

• Establish project workstreams and develop timetable for managing processes 
July 2015 

• Issue of Formal Consultation Document to staff and Trade Unions and have launch event 

• Formal consultation with Trade Unions under TUPE regulations begins 
August 2015 

• Review consultation responses 

• Final proposals on structure / process agreed for implementation 
September 2015 

• Legal agreement drafted and signed off 

• Staff event prior to go live  

• Accommodation and ICT arrangement agreed and put in place 
 

October 2015 

• Go live and TUPE of staff 

• Debrief and identification of lessons learnt. 

 

 

Page 21



Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit     Page 12 of 19 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Head of Shared Service and 
Head of Internal Audit (LBR 

and RBK) RMG2 

Audit Manager 
(Deputy HIA) 
SCP49-55 

External 
Contractor 

 

Senior 
Auditor x8 
SCP 33-41 

Head of Internal Audit 
(LBM) and Deputy Head of 

Shared Service (MG1) 

Principal Auditor 
x2 

SCP41-47 

Auditor x2 
SC18-34 

Director of Finance  

Richmond 
 

Director of Finance  
Director of Finance 
and Corporate 

Services   

Kingston 

Head of 
Corporate 
Governance  

Merton 
 

Pool of Auditors   

APPENDIX 1 

P
age 22



 

13 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) for the Shared 
Internal Audit Service 

 

Directorate: Finance & Corporate Services 

Service Area: Internal Audit Services 

Name of service/ function/ policy/ 
being assessed: 

Shared Internal Audit Service (expansion of current 
arrangements) 

Officers leading on assessment: Alix Wilson – Head of Internal Audit Service 

Other staff involved: Jill Pain – Principal Auditor 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
 

1. Briefly describe the service/ function/ policy: 
 

The current shared Internal Audit Service provided to the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames 
(LBRuT) and the Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) is delivered by a mix of in-house staff and through an 
external contract with Mazars (via the Croydon Framework contract). 
 
The in-house team consists of eight members of staff. Mazars work as part of the team, providing 
auditors as and when required. The shared service is hosted by LBRuT and sits within the Finance and 
Corporate Services (FCS) Directorate, with the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) line managed by LBRuT’s 
Director of FCS. The HIA has a direct reporting line to the Head of Corporate Governance at RBK and a 
dotted reporting line to the RBK Director of Finance. The shared service reports to the Shared Service 
Board, which includes both Directors of Finance. 
 
Internal Audit’s role is to protect the public purse – to ensure Council Tax payers’ funds are used for 
proper purposes, in accordance with agreed plans and priorities, and to ensure value for money is 
obtained. This also includes the management of risks associated with all the Council’s activities. 
 
An effective system of Internal Audit is a statutory function within Local Government, as required by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
Internal Audit work is governed by CIPFA’s Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. This sets out the 
framework for internal audit and identifies the key objectives, status and processes for internal audit. 
 
The investigation service which previously formed part of the current shared service arrangements, is 
now delivered through a five borough shared service arrangement by the South West London Fraud 
Partnership. The annual Fraud Plan continues to be established by the HIA and agreed by members. The 
delivery of this plan is overseen and monitored by the HIA through membership on the Steering Group. 
 

 
 

2. Why is the equality impact and needs analysis being undertaken?  
 

The Internal Audit shared service currently serves both LBRuT and RBK Councils. An EINA is being 
undertaken because it is proposed that the current shared service arrangements are extended to include 
the London Borough of Merton (LBM). The service will be governed by the Shared Service Board, which 
will include the Directors of Finance from all three Councils. The EINA is being prepared to help ensure 
that there is transparency, fairness and accountability in the decision making process and to seek to 
ensure that the needs and rights of different members of the community are considered. 

Page 23



 

14 

 

 
It has been agreed that the LBRuT will continue to be the host authority for the shared service. 
 

 

3.  Summary of the key findings 
 

 There is no evidence to suggest that expanding the shared service arrangement will bring about any 
negative or positive effects on any external groups with protected characteristics. 
 
There may be an impact on the staff currently employed by the shared service and LB Merton Audit 
Team. The impact of any changes as a result of the expansion to the shared service will be considered in 
a separate staff EINA which will be finalised following completion of the staff consultation on the shared 
service. 
 

 
 

4. Has this service/ function/ policy undertaken a screening for relevance?  
 

An initial Screening for Relevance exercise was performed for the current shared service, a copy of this is 
attached as Annex 1.  
 
The following protected characteristic was identified as medium relevance: 
Disability 

 
The following aims were identified as high priorities for the service to address: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment or victimisation 

• Foster good relations 
 
A further document for the extended shared service has also been completed and this is attached as 
Annex 2. 
 

 

 
5. What sources of information have been used in the preparation of this equality impact 

and needs analysis? For example, this could include equalities monitoring information, 
performance data, consultation feedback or needs assessment. Please provide the 
details in the table below: 

 

Information source Description and outline of the information source 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/23
4/contents/made  

 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015: 
Legislation for requirement for an effective system of 
internal audit to be a statutory function within Local 
Government. 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/sy
stem/uploads/attachment_data/file/207064
/public_sector_internal_audit_standards_d
ecember2012.pdf  

 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards: 
CIPFA document that sets out framework for internal audit 
and identifies the key objectives, status and processes for 
internal audit. 
 

Workforce Survey 2014 

 

Annual document produced by LBRuT’s HR Service to 
assess the Council’s workforce – not published (as of June 
2015). 
 

 
 
ANALYSING IMPACT, NEEDS AND EFFECTS 

 

It is important that the analysis addresses each part of the duty assessed as relevant to the 
area being examined. 

 
6. Key questions to consider: 

 

Page 24



 

15 

 

• What does customer feedback, complaints or discussions with stakeholder groups tell you 
about the impact of the service/ function/ policy on the protected characteristic groups, 
where assessed as relevant to area being examined? 

• Important to understand levels of disadvantage experienced by groups, different needs 
people have. 

• Are there any barriers to accessing services for any groups? 

• How well are diverse needs understood and met? 

• Do differences in service take up, user feedback or satisfaction levels indicate that it is not 
accessible to certain protected groups, or does not meet their needs? 

• Are there population changes that might indicate new needs?  

• Have the needs of disabled people been identified and addressed where these are different 
from the needs of non-disabled people? 

• Is there evidence of differential impact or different outcomes which need to be addressed? 

• Are there opportunities to promote equality or improve participation by diverse groups? 

• Identify any need to tackle prejudice or promote understanding between different groups? 

 
Protected Group Findings 

 

There is no data to analyse in respect to the ‘protected characteristics’. 
 
The Internal Audit function’s customers are internal. No complaints have been received from internal 
customers about the service provided by the shared Internal Audit function to date.  
 
The service would seek to address the high priority areas detailed above (to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment or victimisation and foster good relations) by engagement with senior managers via DMT 
meetings providing updates on the shared service proposals. 
 
For the purposes of this EINA, the investigations work delivered by the SWLFP is not covered as this 
moved to sit outside of the function on 1st April 2015. 
 
Equality objectives were included within the Service Plan for 2015/16. 
 
There may be an impact on staff working in the shared service and within the LBM Audit Team. An EINA 
will be prepared following completion of the staff consultation on the proposed shared service. 
 

 

Age 
 

 

Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014): 
 

Age % 

0-20 2% 

21-30 16% 

31-40 20% 

41-50 27% 

51-60 24% 

61+ 10% 

 
No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 

Disability 

 

As of October 2014, 6% of LBRuT staff stated that they considered themselves 
to be disabled. 
 
 

Gender (Sex) 

 

As of October 2014, 58% of staff employed by LBRuT were female.  
 
No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 
 

Gender reassignment 
 

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 

Page 25



 

16 

 

 

Marriage and civil 
partnership1 
 

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

 

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 

Race/ethnicity 

 

Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014): 
 

Ethnicity % 

White 82% 

Black/Black British 8% 

Asian/Asian British 7% 

Mixed 2% 

Other 1% 

 
No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 
 

 

Religion and belief 
including non-belief 
 

 

Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014): 
 

Religion/Belief % 

Christian 45% 

Muslim 3% 

Hindu 1% 

Sikh 2% 

Buddhist 1% 

Jewish <1% 

Other religion 5% 

No religion 19% 

Prefer not to say 24% 

 
No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 
 

Sexual orientation 
 

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic. 
 

 
7. Have you identified any data gaps in relation to the relevant protected characteristics 

and relevant parts of the duty?  
 

If so, how will these data gaps be addressed?   
What further information is needed to enable a robust equality analysis of the area? 

 

Gaps in data Action to deal with this 
 

No gaps have been identified. 
 

 
 

8. Consultation in the EINA process  
 

Senior managers have been consulted via DMT meetings. 
Audit Committee members have received regular reports regarding the shared service proposal. 
Feedback indicated that managers and Audit Committee members were happy with the existing levels of 
service and would not wish to see any diminution in service under the shared service. 
This EINA will be reviewed by the FCS Equality & Diversity Steering Group and feedback considered. 
 

 
ACTION PLANNING 

 

                                                 
1 Only in relation to the first part of the duty: eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation. Page 26



 

17 

 

9. What issues have you identified that require equality actions? What are these equality 
actions, who will be responsible for them and when will they be completed?  

 

Issue identified Planned action Lead officer Date 
 

No issues have been identified. 
 

   

 
 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

10.  How will the actions in the action plan be monitored and reviewed?  
 

No issue were identified when producing this EINA so an action plan has not been developed.  
Ongoing monitoring for equality impact will be performed by reviewing any complaints received about the 
service. 
 

 
11.  Publishing the full completed analysis 

 

Please provide details below: 
 

 

Approved by 
 

 

 

Date of approval 
 

 
 

Date of publication 
 

 

 
 

DECISION-MAKING PROCESS 
 

12. Has a copy of this EINA or summary of key findings been provided to key decision-
makers, where relevant, to help inform decision making, for example as an appendix to a 
Cabinet or Committee report or report for DMT or Exec Board?  
 

• If so please provide the details including the name of the report, the audience i.e. 
Cabinet/ Committee, the date it went, and the report author.   

• Please also outline the outcome from the report and details of any follow up action 
or monitoring of actions or decision taken: 

 

Cabinet report – LBRuT (July 2015) 
Report to Policy & Finance Committee – RBL (July) 
Cabinet report – LBM (to be confirmed) 
 
A copy of this EINA will be attached as an Appendix to the reports for these meetings. 
 

Page 27



 

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit & Investigations     Page 18 of 19 

 

Annex 1  
 

Public Sector Equality Duty 2011: Screening for Relevance 
 

Name of Directorate Finance & Corporate Services 

Telephone 020 8891 7278 
Contact  Jill Pain – Principal Auditor 

Email jill.pain@richmond.gov.uk 
 

Are the areas listed below relevant to your service/ function?  
 
Please answer H, M or L for ‘High’ Medium or Low’ 

Service/ Function 

Age Sex Race Disab’ Re&B SO GeR P&M M&CP 

Eliminating 
discrimination, 
harassment or 
victimisation 

Advancing equality 
of opportunity 

between different 
groups 

Fostering 
good relations 

Internal Audit and 
Investigations 

L L L M L L ~ L L H L H 

 
 
 

Legend 

Age Age Sex Sex 

Race Race Disab’ Disability 

Re & B Religion and Belief SO Sexual orientation 

GeR Gender re-assignment P&M Pregnancy and maternity 

M&CP 
Marriage and civil  
partnership 

  

 
Rationale for no relevance to one or more protected characteristics or one or more parts of the duty: 
Gender reassignment is not measured or reported on within the Internal Audit function.  
Disability has been rated medium relevance, as measures may need to be considered to facilitate disabled members of staff involved in an audit.   

P
age 28



 

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit & Investigations     Page 19 of 19 

 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Shared Internal Audit Service and Update on HR Shared Service
	Business Case - Shared Internal Audit Service final


